
CArlPBELL-BARNITZ HOUSE 

211 EAST MAIN STREET 

Although local tradition insists that the house belonqed to 
prominent realtor Jacob Sherman, there is little to substantiate this 
claim. In fact, all evidence indicates that the house was built c. 1815 
by one William Campbell. This being the case, the house becomes important 
in that it indicates a respectable level of style in the town, a full 
score years before the establishment of Carroll County. A diary for the 
years 1820-32 notes that this lot held a "brick, 2-story dwelling built 
by William Campbell, father of Jacob Camobell of Manchester, who lived 
there a short time, then sold it to Michael Barnitz, who built a large 
brewery in back of it ••• 11 Thus, number 211 is one of the earliest sub­
stantiated homes of the basic vernacular style, consisting of 3 bays, 
2~ stories with the side hall and double parlor. To this style, Campbell 
added touches of his own - handsome stair decoration, mouse-tooth cornice 
and (rare for the City) a fanlight over the door. Whether the marbelizing 
that is rumored to have existed on the stairs was Campbell's or Barnitz's 
it, when combined with the other decorative features present, produced a 
splendid individual statement within a standard form. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

Number 211 East Main Street, once a brewer's residence, is 
now, rather uneasily, a beauty shop. Facing south onto Main Street 
{Maryland Route 32) about 100 feet from the intersection of Church 
Street, the house sits on part of lot 21 of the original town of 
Westminster. Although superficially being a "typical" vernacular 
Westminster 2~ story - 3 bay - L-shape house, the place has certain 
details that set it far apart from others of its type. 

The south {entrance) front is laid in a fairly precise 
Flemish Bond, below a nicely done mouse-tooth cornice {the rest of the 
facades are laid in common stretcher bond). The entrance door {the 
eastern ground floor bay) has a narrow fanlight transom {which is hidden 
from the outside by a Morrish-style red awning). To the west are 2 sin­
gle pane double-hung sash windows; above are three 6/6 windows; all bays 
are regularly placed, and all windows have 4 course gauged flat arches 
and white wooden sills. The walls of the Main Street section have been 
painted white; all others are unpainted. 

The gable end of the Main Street section, and the depth of 
the ell, make up the west-facade. A flush flat-capped brick chimney 
crowns the gable's peak. The four windows in the ell {2 per floor) are 
regularly spaced and are aligned with themselves and with those in the 
Main Street section. Although a mass of Virginia Creeper covers this 
facade, it is possible to discern the 3 course gauged flat arches and 
white sills of all windows. 

Creeper also covers the south front, which is otherwise dom­
inated by the gable end of the ell, and by the 2-tiered wooden porch 
which runs along its entire east side. Except for the vine, there is 
little of interest here; a small flat-capped brick chimney is flush 
with wall and rises at the gable's peak; to its east there is a small 
4-light window in the attic. The porch is entered from the south, from 
the Main Street section, by one 6-panelled door on each floor. Behind 
the porch, on the ell, is one identical central door per floor {half­
glass, half-wood). Each floor has one 6/6 window to the south, and one 
9/6 window to the north. Except for the touch of Islamn over the Main 
Street entrance door, the exterior is very little altered; over the 
corrugated sheet metal which covers all roofs {and which, rolled over 
the edges, creates cornice ornament on all but the south fronts) seems 
original, at least in spirit. 

Happily, the same is largely true for the interior, which, 
in plan, conaists of a side stair hall to the east, with 4 rooms in a 
row to the west. The stairway itself consists of a simple handrail 
and balusters, but the riser brackets are very intricately carved. One 
native reports that, until about 3 years ago, the risers possessed 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Although local tradition seems determined to_ label this 
house as belonging to Jacob Sherman (perhaps the similarity between 
"Sherman" and "Shellman" makes the name desirable), there is little 
to substantiate this claim. In fact, all evidence indicates that 
the house was built c. 1815 by one Williaa campbell. This being 
the case, the house becomes important in that it indicates a respec­
table level of affluence and style in the town, a full score years 
before the establishment of carroll county. Katherine Shellman's 
diary for 1820-32 notes that the lot held a "brick, two-story dwelling 
built by William Campbell, father of Jacob c:ampbell of Manchester, who 
lived there only a short time and then sold it to Michael Barnitz, 
who built a large brewery back of it and lived there many years" (pre­
sumably Barnitz lived in the house, not the brewery). Barnitz bought 
the place on March 26, 1821, for $1550 (Frederick County Deed Book 
JS 13, page 252). Thus, No. 211 is one of the earliest substantiated 
homes of the basic Westminster style, consisting of 3 bays, 2~ stories 
with a side hall and double parlor. To this style, Campbell added 
touches of his own - handsome stair decoration, mouse-tooth cornice, 
and (rare for the City) a fanlight over the door. Whether the mar­
bleizing that is rumored to have existed on the stairs was campbell's 
or Barnitz's, it, when combined with the other decorative features, 
produced a splendid individual statement within a standard form. The 
present owners took title October 14, 1968, (Deed 457/181) and adapted 
the house into a beauty shop. 
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ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY--------

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 

Being the southerly half of lots 20 and 21 as shown on a plat 
of the original town of Westminster as recorded among the Land Records 
of Frederick County in Book L, Page 472. 
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their oriqinal, rich marbleizing, which is now painted over. The 
eight panel interior doors have synunetrically molded trim with corner 
bull's-eye blocks. One red and black marble arched fireplace exists -
in the ground southwest room. It has a fine keystone, and flat un­
carved spandrals; an interesting red and yellow tile hearth is before it. 
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